
Lead Member for Finance and Support Services 
Briefing  
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Lead Member for Finance and Support 
Services Briefing to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
 
Tom Stannard 
Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Tuesday, 17 January 2023 
 
TIME:  2.00 pm 
 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 
 

1   Apologies for absence.  
 

 

2   Declarations of interest.  
 

 

3   Items for Decision (Part 1 - Open to the Public):  
 

 

3a Council Tax - Calculation of Tax Base for Tax Setting Purposes 
2023/24.  
 

(Pages 2 - 9) 

3b Business Rates - Collection Fund Estimated Fund Balance 
Calculation 31 March 2023.  
 

(Pages 10 - 15) 

4   Exclusion of the Public.  
 

 

5   Items for Decision (Part 2 - Closed to the Public):  
 
No items. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602 
Claire Edwards E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



1 
 

PART 1 (OPEN TO THE PUBLIC) 
 

 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 

TO: 
LEAD MEMBER BRIEFING FOR FINANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

ON: 
TUESDAY, 17 JANUARY 2023 

 

TITLE:   COUNCIL TAX – CALCULATION OF TAX BASE FOR TAX SETTING 
PURPOSES 2023/24 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
That the Lead Member approves that, in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated 
by Salford City Council as its council tax base for the financial year 2023/24 shall be 
73,859. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
To inform the Lead Member of the calculation of the council tax base for 2023/24 and 
to seek its approval. This "base" figure, expressed as the number of band D equivalent 
properties in the city, is, for council tax purposes, a fundamental element in the tax-
setting process. 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 
Local Government Finance Act 1992 
The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012 
LGA Finance circulars. 
Various Working Papers in the Finance Division of Service Reform. 
 

KEY DECISION: Yes 
 

DETAILS: 
See overleaf 
 

 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3a



2 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Each local authority is required to calculate its “council tax base” and to notify it to 

each major precepting authority by 31st January. The figure is a calculation of the 
number of band D equivalent properties in the city. 

 
1.2 The tax base is a factor in the tax-setting formula: 

Base amount of council tax = R/T 
Where: 
R = council tax requirement 
T = council tax base 

 
1.3 In effect, when multiplied by band D council tax, the tax base will calculate the 

amount of council tax (R, the council tax requirement) that can be drawn from the 
Collection Fund in the relevant financial year. 

 
1.4 The rules for calculating the “council tax base” are covered by SI 2012 Number 2914 

(The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 
2012. 

 
1.5 Section 67(2A)(za) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 specifically exempts 

the calculation of the council tax base from requiring approval from a full council 
meeting. It is now for each local authority to make its own arrangements for adopting 
the council tax base. The City Mayor has delegated this responsibility to the Chief 
Finance Officer in consultation with the Lead Member for Finance and Support 
Services. 
  

1.6 The specified period during which local authorities must consider and approve the 
council tax base is 1st December to 31st January. 

 
2 THE COUNCIL TAX BASE 2023/24 
 
2.1 Appendix 1 attached sets out the details of the calculation of the council tax base 

for 2023/24. 
 
2.2 The council tax base must be expressed as the number of band D equivalent 

households and for Salford in 2023/24 this is estimated to be 73,859. 
 
2.3 This represents an increase of 1,954 dwellings from the council tax base for 2022/23  

of 71,905. The main reason for the increase is new property growth in the city. 
 

3 ASSUMPTIONS 

 
3.1  The estimated council tax base contains the following assumptions: - 
 

 The estimated number of new dwellings is 2,923 (3,199 in 2022/23). This is 
based on the projected growth in new properties as notified by the Place 
directorate’s investment team. 

 

 The number of dwellings qualifying for disabled person relief will be 557 (555 
in 2022/23). 

 
 

Page 3



3 
 

 There will be no (1 in 2022/23) full-year equivalent properties to be removed 
from the banding list (a list of all properties in the area) during the year. 
 

 The estimated number of fully exempt dwellings will be 4,347 (3,867 in 
2022/23). 

  

 The estimated number of single person discounts and discounts disregarding 
all but one resident is 50,744 (48,605 in 2022/23).  

 

 The council tax reduction scheme is estimated to be the equivalent of 19,884 
dwellings (19,619 in 2022/23) across all bands and equivalent to 14,017 band 
D properties (13,842 in 2022/23). 

  

 The long term empty homes premium is estimated to apply as follows: 
 

 204 properties (209 in 2022/23) to be charged the 100% premium for being 
empty for between 2 and 5 years. 

 41 properties (39 in 2022/23) to be charged the 200% premium for being 
empty for between 5 and 10 years. 

 18 properties (21 in 2022/23) to be charged the 300% premium for being 
empty for more than 10 years. 

 
4 COLLECTION RATE 

 
4.1 The ultimate collection rate target for 2022/23 was set at 95.5% which was an 

increase from the 95.0% that was set for 2021/22 but still below the 96.5% set before 
Covid-19. Although we are now another year on from Covid-19 it is thought prudent 
to retain the ultimate collection rate target for 2023/24 at 95.5% due to the current 
cost of living crisis. 

 
5 ANALYSIS OF DETAILS SINCE 2014/15 
 
5.1 Appendix 2, attached, sets out details of calculations made for each year since 

2014/15. 
 
6 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
6.1 That the Lead Member approves that, in accordance with the Local Authorities 

(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount 
calculated by Salford City Council as its council tax base for the financial year 
2023/24 shall be 73,859. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
Budget Strategy 
 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
 
The Tax Base figure is fundamental to the setting of the council tax levy and hence to the 
whole budget process. Setting a tax base that is too low would prevent the council from drawing 
the full amount of tax collected from the collection fund in 2023/24, while setting a tax base 
that is too high would create a deficit in the collection fund. However, in normal years the 
exercise is regarded as low risk because: -  
 

 the starting figures are provided by the Valuation Office and a year-on-year 
comparison of figures is undertaken by the DLUHC and attention drawn to possible 
anomalies (if any); 

Page 4



4 
 

 

 the method of calculation is well-established and familiar, and figures are checked for 
"reasonableness" and their fit with expectations. While an element of judgement needs 
to be made on future anticipated dwelling changes, these are based on research and 
information from other council sources. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor 
 
The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax base) (England) Regulations 2012 set out 
the rules for calculation of the Council Tax base, which is an amount required to be used in the 
calculation of Council Tax by billing authorities and major precepting authorities and in the 
calculation of the amount of a precept payable by each billing authority to a major precepting 
authority. Under the rules, the council tax base is, in essence, the number of dwellings in an 
area belonging to each valuation band, modified to take account of the proportion applying to 
dwellings in each band, discounts, reductions under a Council Tax reductions scheme and the 
proportion of the Council Tax for the year which the billing authority expects to be able to 
collect. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
Financial implications are described in the main body of the report as it has been produced by 
the finance team. 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A 
 
There are no procurement implications contained within this report 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A  
Not Applicable 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
Not Applicable 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
David Eden – Tel No. 793 3228 
 

 
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 
 
ALL WARDS 
 

 

Page 5



5 
 

APPENDIX 1 

ESTIMATED COUNCIL TAX BASE 2023/24  

 

A 
(Subject 

to 
disabled 

reduction) 

A B C D E F G H TOTAL 

Number of dwellings on the Valuation List at 12th 
September 2022 

 62,019 29,416 20,481 11,049 3,708 1,460 872 99 129,104 

Add 
          

Number of dwellings not on the Valuation List in the relevant 
band but which will become listed in the relevant band during 
the year. 

          

 Estimated number of new properties  606 1,162 790 231 50 75 7 2 2,923 

 Disabled reductions 159 129 104 70 46 19 21 9 0 557 

 
159 62,754 30,682 21,341 11,326 3,777 1,556 888 101 132,584 

Less 
          

Number of dwellings on the Valuation List in the relevant band 
which will not be listed in that band during the year. 

          

 Disabled reductions  -159 -129 -104 -70 -46 -19 -21 -9 -557 

 Demolitions and refurbishments  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Less           

Number of exempt dwellings at any time during the year 
included in the relevant band on the valuation List (excluding 
empty shown below) 

 -2,298 -819 -725 -387 -84 -17 -10 -7 -4,347 

Number of chargeable dwellings (A) 159 60,297 29,734 20,512 10,869 3,647 1,520 857 85 127,680 

  

P
age 6



6 
 

 

 

A 
(Subject 

to 
disabled 

reduction) 

A B C D E F G H TOTAL 

Number of chargeable dwellings (A) 159 60,297 29,734 20,512 10,869 3,647 1,520 857 85 127,680 

Less estimated number of properties subject to 
discounts and council tax reduction 

 
          

. Single person households including discount 

disregards all but one resident (inc.in row (A)) 

(b) 53 30,353 11,220 5,809 2,275 651 259 116 8 50,744 

Appropriate percentage (c) -25% -25% -25% -25% -25% -25% -25% -25% -25% 
 

Equivalent number of dwellings (b) x (c) -13 -7,588 -2,805 -1,452 -569 -163 -65 -29 -2 -12,686 

. Discount disregards - all residents (included 

in row (A) above) 

(d) 4 26 16 22 17 11 14 23 13 146 

Appropriate percentage (e) -50% -50% -50% -50% -50% -50% -50% -50% -50% 
 

Equivalent number of dwellings (d) x (e) -2 -13 -8 -11 -9 -6 -7 -12 -7 -75 

. Empty and unfurnished homes (f) 0 795 436 254 161 39 15 13 3 1,716 

Appropriate percentage (50% for first 2 
months) 

(g) -10% -10% -10% -10% -10% -10% -10% -10% -10% 
 

Equivalent number of dwellings (f) x (g) 0 -80 -44 -25 -16 -4 -2 -1 0 -172 

. Council tax reduction (CTR) scheme 

(included in row (A) above) 

 
56 15,566 2,716 1,015 333 129 51 18 0 19,884 

Equivalent number of dwellings 
 

-56 -15,566 -2,716 -1,015 -333 -129 -51 -18 0 -19,884 

  

P
age 7



7 
 

  

A 
(Subject 

to 
disabled 

reduction) 

A B C D E F G H TOTAL 

Add estimated number of properties subject to 
premia 

           

. Long Term Empty (inc. in row (A) above)            

Empty for 2 - 5 years (h) 0 100 38 40 16 4 3 2 1 204 

Appropriate percentage premium 100% (i) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
 

Equivalent number of dwellings (h) x (i) 0 100 38 40 16 4 3 2 1 204 

Empty for 5 -10 years (j) 0 24 9 3 4 1 0 0 0 41 

Appropriate percentage premium 200% (k) 200% 200% 200% 200% 200% 200% 200% 200% 200% 
 

Equivalent number of dwellings (j) x (k) 0 48 18 6 8 2 0 0 0 82 

Empty for 10 years or more (l) 0 10 5 2 1 0 0 0 0 18 

Appropriate percentage premium 300% (m) 300% 300% 300% 300% 300% 300% 300% 300% 300% 
 

Equivalent number of dwellings (l) x (m) 0 30 15 6 3 0 0 0 0 54 

Net number of chargeable dwellings 
 

88 37,228 24,232 18,061 9,969 3,351 1,398 799 77 95,203 

Proportion to Band D 
 

5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 1 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9 
 

Relevant amount for each band (N) 49 24,819 18,847 16,054 9,969 4,096 2,019 1,332 154 77,339 

Estimated Collection Rate  (O)          95.5% 

ESTIMATED COUNCIL TAX BASE 2023/24 (N x O)          73,859 

  

P
age 8



8 
 

APPENDIX 2 

           

Return year  2023/24 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 

Dwellings on valuation list 129,104 125,204 122,682 120,292 117,009 115,365 113,646 113,059 111,778 110,665 

Exemptions 4,347 3,867 3,765 3,605 3,087 2,677 3,102 3,075 4,513 4,311 

Demolitions etc. 0 1 3 6 155 0 4 155 352 346 

Disabled reductions 557 555 551 551 542 522 498 499 510 522 

25% discounts (single 
person & disregards) 

50,744 48,605 47,455 46,696 43,905 47,684 46,416 45,832 45,308 45,916 

50% discounts 146 151 146 147 151 161 154 154 161 163 

10% discounts 1,716 1,685 2,288 2,334 2,003 1,763 1,723 1,843 1,630 1,457 

50% premium (pre 19/20) - - - - - 304 283 332 359 523 

100% premium (from 19/20) 204 209 179 131 145 - - - - - 

200% premium (from 20/21) 41 39 69 81 - - - - - - 

300% premium (from 21/22) 18 21 0 - - - - - - - 

CTR scheme 19,884 19,619 21,820 17,721 18,242 17,847 18,317 19,017 19,937 22,283 

Band D Equivalents 77,339 75,293 71,694 72,482 70,894 67,903 66,222 64,404 61,448 58,708 

Assumed Collection Rate 95.5% 95.5% 95.0% 96.5% 96.5% 96.0% 96.0% 96.0% 96.0% 96.0% 

Taxbase 73,859 71,905 68,109 69,945 68,413 65,187 63,573 61,828 58,990 56,360 

 

P
age 9



PART 1 - (OPEN TO THE PUBLIC) 

 

 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 

TO: 
LEAD MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

ON: 
TUESDAY, 17 JANUARY 2023 

 

TITLE: BUSINESS RATES - COLLECTION FUND ESTIMATED FUND BALANCE 
CALCULATION 31 MARCH 2023 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
  
That the £6.424m third (and final) year allocation of the phased 2020/21 estimated deficit to 
preceptors’ general funds in 2023/24 be noted. 
 
That a £2.035m surplus be declared as the estimated Collection Fund balance as at 31st 
March 2023 in respect of the business rates retention scheme. 
 
That delegated approval be granted to the Chief Finance Officer to approve the business 
rates estimate for 2023/24 and to notify the respective amounts to be distributed to the 
council and the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) (in relation to its fire and 
rescue functions). 
  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) regulations 2013 provide for the operation of 
the rates retention system through the council’s Collection Fund. They require a local 
authority to estimate the balance on its Collection Fund for the scheme as at 31st March 
each year and to notify the government and each relevant precepting authority of the 
amounts that have been calculated by 31st January in the preceding year. As part of the 
100% rates retention pilot any balance is to be distributed to/borne by the council and GMCA 
(fire element) in the following year based on the prescribed share for each. 
 
A surplus occurs on the collection fund when the collection performance is better than that 
budgeted for at the start of the year and/or if the rateable value in the city is higher than that 
estimated at the start of the year. 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 
Various reports and papers including business rates system reports, the Non-Domestic 
Rating (Rates Retention) regulations 2013, the Local Authorities (Collection Fund: Surplus 
and Deficits) (Coronavirus) (England) Regulations 2020 and appeals information from the 
valuation office agency.   
 

KEY DECISION: Yes 
 

DETAILS: 
See overleaf 
 

 
  

Page 10

Agenda Item 3b



   2   

REPORT DETAILS 

 
1. Background 
 

 Each billing authority is required to maintain a separate Collection Fund, which shows its 
transactions in relation to non-domestic rates and council tax, and illustrates the way in 
which these have been distributed to preceptors, the government and the general fund. 

 
 Regulations require the council to make estimates by 31st January each year of the likely 
deficit or surplus at the end of the year in respect of business rate transactions and to 
notify the government and the fire authority of this. As part of the 100% rates retention 
pilot, any such balance is to be distributed to/borne by the council (99%) and GMCA (fire) 
(1%) in accordance with the business rates retention scheme (BRRS). 

 
 This report gives details of the Collection Fund transactions in respect of business rates 
in 2022/23. The analysis is based on actual data up to and including 30th November 2022 
projected to 31st March 2023. The projected outturn considers the net business rates yield 
in the year and the associated amounts paid to the fire authority and the council as their 
estimated share under the BRRS regulations. The net position produces a surplus or 
deficit on the Collection Fund in respect of business rates. 

 
2. Original estimate 2022/23 
 

 The council’s 2022/23 original estimate, as shown in the NNDR1 return to the government, 
forecast that the council’s net business rate yield would be £83.909m and that the 
council’s share of retained income under the 100% rates retention pilot would be 
£83.070m.  

 
 The estimate was considered prudent but highlighted the significant concern both locally 
and nationally about the impact of the cost of appeals in the system. This is covered in 
more detail in section 3.4 of this report. 

 
 The estimate provided for growth increasing the total business rates income by almost 
£4.5m in 2022/23. Although this was a large increase, it was considered to be a prudent 
estimate based on information from the council’s investment team which reflected the 
likely impacts of new assessments in the valuation process and the impacts of the 
council’s regeneration strategy. The majority of the increase was expected to come from 
developments close to the city centre.     

 
 The assumed collection rate of 95.5% was a slight increase on the 95.0% assumed for 
2021/22 as we move away from the Covid-19 pandemic.  

 
 The NNDR 1 return did not include a section for the covid additional relief fund (CARF) 
element and so no estimate could be set for this. 

 
3. Estimated outturn 2022/23 
 

 The following table shows the forecast variance of each aspect of the fund with the bottom 
line representing the 2022/23 estimated surplus. 

Page 11



   3   

 
Table 1 

 Original 
estimate 

Estimated 
outturn 

Variance 

 £m £m £m 
Gross rates payable (including growth)  127.326 125.888 -1.438 
Small business rate relief -9.865 -10.557 -0.692 
Mandatory relief  -9.214 -9.052 0.162 
Empty property relief  -5.958 -5.958 0.000 
Discretionary relief -0.248 -0.267 -0.019 
Retail, hospitality and leisure relief -7.750 -5.055 2.695 
Covid additional relief fund (CARF) 0.000 -6.994 -6.994 
Other relief -0.073 -0.003 0.070 
Costs of collection allowance -0.434 -0.434 0.000 
Estimated losses in collection -4.240 -1.299 2.941 
Estimated cost of appeals -5.635 -4.200 1.435 
2021/22 outturn adjustment 0.000 3.875 3.875 

2022/23 estimated surplus 83.909 85.944 2.035 

To be distributed as follows:    

 Council share (99%) 83.070 85.085 2.015 

 GMCA (fire and rescue functions) (1%) 0.839 0.859 0.020 

Total 83.909 85.944 2.035 

 
 Review of the variances in table 1 

 
3.2.1. The rateable value for the city has slightly reduced by 0.1% from £241.645m (Jan 

20221) to £241.310m (Nov 2022). Growth in the city has been outweighed by both the 
reduction in value and the removal of properties from the rating list. Gross rates payable 
have also decreased as some of these list alterations have backdating implications to 
prior year liabilities. 

 
3.2.2. The original estimate for retail, hospitality and leisure relief (RHL) was calculated based 

on all accounts that may be eligible for the relief. During 2022/23 many ratepayers have 
contacted the council to refuse the relief as the receipt of it would cause them to be in 
breach of the subsidy threshold limit. The reduction in relief awarded has therefore 
created the positive variance for this element. 

 
3.2.3. The 2022/23 NNDR 1 return did not allow authorities to include an estimate for the cost 

of awarding Covid additional relief fund (CARF) and therefore the original estimate for 
this was nil. The government will reimburse the cost of this relief up to a maximum total 
of £7.957m. Total relief of £0.949m was awarded during the 21/22 financial year. 
Although the £6.996m awarded this financial year generates a negative variance within 
the fund, the overall impact of this will be neutral to the council due to the amount awarded 
being within the maximum reimbursable. Regulations require the separation of the costs 
to the fund and the reimbursement to the preceptors. 

 
3.2.4. The estimated outturn figure for estimated losses in collection incorporates the 

allowance set aside for the 2022/23 liability year as well as the impact of improved 
collection rate assumptions relating to all prior year liabilities. The awarding of CARF has 
improved the collection rate for the 2021/22 liability year and therefore this has enabled 
the collection allowance for that year to be reduced.   

 
3.2.5. The 2021/22 outturn adjustment relates to the difference between the estimated and 

actual outturns for that year. The main elements contributing to the difference were: 

 
3.2.6.  

 a reduction in the value of retail relief awarded. After the initial awarding of relief, 
accounts continued to be updated throughout the year with many ratepayers getting 
in touch to refuse relief on the grounds of it breaching their government subsidy limits. 

Page 12



   4   

 

 collection rates continued to recover from the impact of Covid-19 better than had been 
anticipated in the original outturn estimate and therefore the estimated value of losses 
in collection was reduced. 

 
 Appeals 

 
3.3.1. The Valuation Office Agency (VOA) continues to provide detailed historical information 

on appeals from the inception of the 2005 rating list to the end of the subsequent 2010 
list. 

 
3.3.2. The Government introduced the Check, Challenge, Appeal system on 1st April 2017 

with the intention of streamlining the appeals process and reducing the number of 
speculative claims that reach the appeal stage. This system is only for appeals received 
from 1st April 2017 against the 2017 valuation list and does not affect those outstanding 
against the 2010 valuation list.  

 
4. Three-year phasing of the 2020/21 estimated deficit 
 

 As a consequence of Covid-19, a new regulation was introduced for calculating the 
2020/21 estimated outturn position on the Collection Fund. If a fund deficit was forecast 
for 2020/21 then the financial impact of this was required to be spread over the next three 
financial years rather than just the next one. 

 
 The 2020/21 estimated fund deficit calculated for Salford was £50.422m and this 
comprised: 

 

 the prior year surplus variance of £0.010m; 

 the retail relief and nursery discount variance of £31.138m (funded by grant) and;  

 the 2020/21 year “exceptional balance” of £19.273m. 
 

 One third of the 2020/21 “exceptional balance” of £19.273m is required to be charged to 
preceptors’ general funds in the following three financial years 2021/22, 2022/23 and 
2023/24. The charge in each year will be £6.424m, to be apportioned to preceptors as 
follows: 

 

Organisation £m 

Salford City Council 6.360 

GMCA (fire and rescue functions) 0.064 

Total 6.424 

 
5. Estimate 2023/24 
 

 Work is ongoing to calculate the 2023/24 estimated business rates yield. This estimate 
will be calculated using the latest rateable value, the impact of changes in the rate 
poundage, the latest estimates of the appeals provision, collection rate data and the 
impacts of any relief. This will be reported as part of the NNDR 1 Non-Domestic Rating 
Return to be submitted to DLUHC. This is an important part of the council’s budget 
planning process. It is requested that the Chief Finance Officer is given delegated 
approval to certify and submit this return. 

 
 A draft of the new 2023 rating list has been shared with authorities and Salford’s shows 
an increase of £37.4m (15.5%) to the total rateable value. This compares to an average 
increase of 7.3% across England. Although this will increase Salford’s collectable rates, 
the top up grant that the council receives is going to be adjusted to offset the revaluation 
changes. DLUHC’s intention is for top up and tariff adjustments to make the overall impact 
of the revaluation on authorities financially neutral. 

 

Page 13



   5   

 In 2023/24 Salford is expected to continue to be part of the 100% rates retention pilot 
scheme that operates across Greater Manchester. 

 
6. Recommendation 
 

 It is recommended that the £6.424m third (and final) year allocation of the phased 2020/21 
estimated deficit to preceptors’ general funds in 2023/24 be noted. 

 
 It is recommended that a £2.035m surplus be declared on the fund (Business rates) as at 
31st March 2023. This will result in the following distributions in 2023/24: 

 

Organisation £m 

Salford City Council 2.015 

GMCA (fire and rescue functions) 0.020 

Total 2.035 

 
 That delegated approval be granted to the Chief Finance Officer to approve the business 
rates estimate for 2023/24 and to notify the respective amounts to be distributed to the 
council and GMCA (in relation to their fire and rescue functions).  

  

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Budget Strategy 
 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium – it is the tenth year of the BRRS and sixth of the 100% 
rates retention pilot. The potential cost of outstanding appeals is still an extremely volatile 
area and could continue to have a substantial impact on the ultimate balance. However, 
some detailed historical evidence has been gathered which does provide some 
reassurance as to the accuracy of certain assumptions made in the estimate. The 
Collection Fund will continue to be closely monitored during the year and will be reviewed at 
outturn 2022/23. The difference between the actual surplus or deficit at that stage will be 
factored into future estimated balance calculations. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor 
The Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government Finance 
Act 2012) provides for the operation of the non-domestic rates retention system through the 
Council's Collection Fund.  In that regard, the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) 
Regulations 2013 provide for the calculation of the surplus or deficit. The amount is to be 
estimated by 31st January in the preceding year and is to be apportioned in accordance with 
the provisions of the relevant legislation and, in the Council's case, the 100% non-domestic 
rates retention pilot. 
 
As explained in the main body of the report, the Local Authorities (Collection Fund: Surplus 
and Deficits) (Coronavirus) (England) Regulations 2020 implemented an announcement by 
the Secretary of State in July 2020 that the repayment of collection fund deficits arising in 
2020-21 would be spread over the next 3 years rather than the usual period of a year, 
giving councils breathing space in setting budgets. The Regulations therefore allow 
authorities to spread the estimated deficit on the 2020-21 collection fund over the 3 years 
2021-22 to 2023-24. The regulations set out in detail how calculations are to be made in 
each of the 3 years. There is no provision in the regulations to allow authorities to opt out of 
the deficit phasing, or to adopt a different payment profile, so it is important that the Council 
complies with the requirements of the regulations. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  
Financial implications are described in the main body of the report as it has been produced 
by the finance team. 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: N/A 
Not Applicable 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

Page 14



   6   

 
Not Applicable 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  
Not Applicable 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: David Eden Tel. no. 793 3228 or e-mail david.eden@salford.gov.uk 
 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE (S): All 
 

 
  

Page 15

mailto:david.eden@salford.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3a Council Tax - Calculation of Tax Base for Tax Setting Purposes 2023/24.
	3b Business Rates - Collection Fund Estimated Fund Balance Calculation 31 March 2023.

